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PROCEEDINGS 

(The matter was held in open court.) 

MS. OHAYON: May it please the court, Your Honor. 

Before you is Anthony Termaine Avera. He's 

represented by Ms. Jeff Zuschke. He's pleading guilty under 

indictments 2020-421 to domestic violence, second degree and 

2373 to domestic violence, first degree. 

It's my understanding that Mr. Zuschke needs to be 

officially appointed on one of those charges. 

THE COURT: All right. And has the State complied 

with the Victim's Rights Act? 

MS. OHAYON: Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Is there any negotiation or 

recommendation? 

MS. OHAYON: Your Honor, on the 2373, the domestic 

violence, first degree, the negotiation is time served with 

credit for time served of 58 days. 

As to the domestic violence, second degree, I have 

been instructed that the negotiation will depend on what 

Your Honor does with the probation violation. 

MR. ZUSCHKE: Your Honor, to clarify a little bit: 

It's a recommendation of probation with domestic violence 

conditions; however, given that he's also facing a probation 

matter, if you were to give him a significant amount of 

time, I think she would rather just be encompassed within 
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that. 

Does it sound like a fair assessment of what she 

had written there? That's what she told me. 

THE COURT: All right. I understand. It's a 

recommendation. I'll figure out what's appropriate. 

All right. Mr. Zuschke, I'm signing an order 

appointing you on the charge that you -- domestic violence, 

second degree, that you have not been appointed on. I've 

signed the order appointing you to that. 

Mr. Zuschke, you represent Mr. Avera? 

MR. ZUSCHKE: I do, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: How does he plead? 

MR. ZUSCHKE: Guilty. 

THE COURT: Mr. Avera, how old are you? 

THE DEFENDANT: Twenty-eight. 

THE COURT: You can pull your mask down over your 

lips. How far did you go in school? . 

THE DEFENDANT: Eleventh grade. 

THE COURT: You can pull it down a little bit 

more. Have you ever been treated for any mental or 

emotional disability? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: You know you are doing here today? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Mr. Avera, I have two indictments 
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before the Court, each of them for domestic violence. One 

of them is domestic violence, first degree. One is domestic 

violence, second degree. Domestic violence, first degree, 

Indictment 2020-2373, alleges on March the 7th of this year, 

you caused physical harm or injury to a Samantha Spenollo, 

household member. Under the circumstances, you're charged 

with domestic violence, first degree. By pleading guilty, 

I'm required to sign an order that would prohibit you from 

owning or possessing a firearm or ammunition for a period of 

ten years. 

You're also on probation for a sentence that 

Judge McKinnon gave you back in January of 2019. You have 

ten years suspended on five years probation -- let's see the 

charge on here -- to assault and battery of a high and 

aggravated nature. You can have that revoked in its 

entirety because of your plea today. 

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And you're wanting to go forward with 

your probation matters today as well? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: The only negotiation is that you 

receive time served for the domestic violence, second 

degree, which means you can get up to three years for the 

domestic violence -- I'm sorry -- domestic violence, first 

4 
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grade, is the negotiation for time served. The domestic 

violence, second degrees, you could get up to three years 

and, in addition, you could have the ten years revoked. It 

appears that that ten years is for a -- is on a serious 

violent offense and whatever time you would get revoked 

would likely be non-parolable. 

Has that been explained to you? Has that been 

explained to you? 

THE DEFENDANT: I guess, sir. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: How do you plead to domestic violence, 

second degree, that took place on -- 2020-421, that 

allegedly took place here in York County on or about 

January the 1st, involving Rosario Spinello? 

How do you plead? Guilty or not guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty. 

THE COURT: I'm sorry? 

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty. 

THE COURT: And, again, on the other indictment 

that allegedly took place here in March, are you pleaded 

guilty to that as well? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

MR. ZUSCHKE: All right. You keep looking at your 

lawyer, and I do remember this plea now. We attempted to do 
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this plea last term. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And you had some hesitancy, and that's 

fine, because we're not in the business of trying to make 

people do anything. I want you to be -- understand what 

you're pleading to today and the consequences. I'm required 

to let you know that. 

Are you aware, again, that by pleading today and 

if I follow the recommendation and the negotiation that you 

could get your ten years revoked? Do you understand? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. And that you could also 

get three years for the domestic violence, second degree. 

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And it still your desire to plead 

guilty and go forward with your plea today? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Do you understand -- has your 

lawyer -- and, normally, we would allow you to sign the 

indictments and initial the indictments. I'm going to write 

on here "unable to sign because of COVID." We are doing 

that to limit our contact with paper as much as we can. Do 

you understand that as well? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 
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THE COURT: Do you understand when you plead 

guilty you give up your right to a jury trial? Nobody can 

force you to plead guilty or make you plead guilty. You 

have a right for a trial by jury. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Let me be sure you do. You have a 

right to maintain your innocence or simply to -- or just to 

simply ask for a trial. If you did, then the State would 

have to bring witnesses here in the courtroom and would have 

to present those witnesses so you could see and hear those 

witnesses, every one of them. Your lawyer could 

cross-examine, ask questions of every State's witness. 

That's called the right to confrontation. If you had the 

jury trial, you'd have a right to remain silent. You 

wouldn't have to say anything about the case. That's your 

constitutional right. If you exercise that right, the judge 

would tell the jury to not hold that against you. That's 

your right to remain silent, and the State has to prove 

their case with their evidence, beyond reasonable doubt, 

before you can be convicted. 

In fact, 12 jurors would have to all unanimously 

agree that the State had proven your guilt beyond a 

reasonable doubt on each offense before you could be 

convicted. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 
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THE COURT: Do you want to give that right up and 

plead guilty to both of these charges today? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And you're ready to go forward with 

your probation violation as well? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with your lawyer and 

the way he's represented you? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Do you have any complaints? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: Are pleading to these two charges 

today of your own free will? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: You have ten days to appeal if I make 

an error or if you disagree with the sentence. That's a 

right you have. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. Solicitor? 

MS. OHAYON: Your Honor, on January 1st, 2020, 

Rock Hill PD dispatched to  Garden Way, Rock Hill, 

South Carolina, in reference to a domestic. Officers met 

with Samantha Spinello who stated her live-in boyfriend, the 

defendant, struck her back of head and face. Law 

enforcement observed injury to the victim's face. There was 
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a scratch and what appeared to be evidence of struggle in 

the apartment. The suspect was not on scene but located 

later. 

On March 11th, 2020, approximately nine in the 

morning, Rock Hill PD responded to meet the sheriff's office 

who was out with Samantha Spinello. Samantha told officers 

that she lived at  Bynum Avenue in Rock Hill with the 

defendant and that on March 7th, 2020, from about 9:00 p.m. 

to midnight, she and Avera were engaged in a heated 

argument. She told officers that it got physical. The 

defendant had been drinking, and when the victim confronted 

him about stopping, he punched her on her arms and 

shoulders. She told officers that she had bruises on parts 

of her arms because she was covering her face to keep from 

getting hit there. 

When she tried to call 911, she took Avera -- she 

said Avera took her phone, ran into the bathroom, dropped 

the phone into the toilet, and the phone was not usable 

after that. Officer Hyman, indicated he saw bruises on the 

victim that were partially healed, indicating the timeframe 

consistent with what she was saying. She stated the phone 

was still in a bag of rice, consistent with getting water 

damage. 

The defendant has previously been convicted of DV 

within the last ten years and is subject to a bond condition 

9 
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for the pending DV second charge, prohibiting from 

contacting the victim. 

10 

I do have a note here that says the victim is 

likely to be in court and she does want contact and will try 

to potentially say that it didn't happen. The defense's 

text messages of conversations between her and him or the 

sister, where she downplays what happened. Ms. Desch has 

watched the body cam. She relayed to the officer everything 

that the report says. She may also bring up that the 

defendant's family has her stuff and will not give it back. 

There is also a note on here, Your Honor, that the 

victim does want contact, but it's the State's position that 

the no-contact order should be in place, given the history. 

We understand the victim's request. 

THE COURT: All right. Looks like the State has a 

dilemma about who to believe when. All right. 

Mr. Zuschke -- well, let me do this. 

Mr. Walker, let me hear about his probation. 

MR. WALKER: Yes, sir, Your Honor. As you know, 

he's been placed on probation January of last year by 

Judge McKinnon. He does have ten years hanging over his 

head. Your Honor, he has a warrant and a citation with us 

that we're addressing. The warrant number is W46200083. 

The citation is C46200005. 

Your Honor, with his warrant, we're addressing the 
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11 

DV charge from -- from March 11th in there. And then for -­

Your Honor, for his citation, we're addressing the DV from 

January the 1st, that he was charged with, and also his 

money in arrears. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

Mr. Zuschke, I'd be glad to hear from you and your 

client, and if the victim's present, I'll be glad to hear 

from her. 

MR. ZUSCHKE: Yes, Your Honor. We are asking you 

to institute a domestic violence probation here on that 

domestic violence in the second degree. We'd ask for a 

partial revocation and continue or a partial intermittent on 

the probation case. Understanding that unusual, I'm going 

to explain to you why. 

Mr. Avera is here, pleading guilty. He wants to 

put himself on the mercy of the Court. As you've heard 

there, the victim, Ms. Samantha Spinello, has indicated that 

she lied to the police; that he did not assault her. She 

has told that to us, as well as to the solicitor's office, 

told them that she wants contact. He's not guilty of 

anything. She got in his face, causing a scratch, and he 

grabbed her to get her off is the extent of what happened 

there. She said that the bruising on her arms came from a 

hospital visit. She also produced pictures of her arm with 

IVs in it to show the source of the bruising from days 
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12 

before the alleged incident. It was also a late report. 

The indication was that because he threw her cell phone in 

the toilette, she was mad. She is here in his support. She 

does very much want him out and want him on probation, wants 

him to get the counseling. 

The solicitor spoke with him -- Ms. Jenny Desch 

spoke to him extensively. As you heard, you've appointed me 

on the domestic violence in the second degree. She met with 

him and spoke with him one-on-one, when he was prose on 

that and came up with an arrangement there, where he was 

going to go on probation. That was before the second one 

came up. There was discussions about dismissing the second 

charge. But, essentially, she said she wasn't willing to do 

more than a time served, unless there was just a smoking gun 

that proved it, that it was something more than her saying 

it now. We weren't able to produce that. 

I've told them that I was more than happy to take 

his case to trial; that he seemed to have a very good one. 

That's why we weren't in the situation where I was even 

talking about an Alfred Plea. Because of the nature of the 

evidence in the case, it was going have to be either a 

guilty plea, where he was excepting responsibility, or 

nothing. He said he wanted to accept responsibly. He 

wanted go forward. He wanted to go in front of Your Honor 

and have his case heard. 
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13 

We're just hoping that you would give him chance 

at doing a probation. Everybody involved in the case seems 

to believe that he has a shot and that they want him to get 

that counseling. The enhancement was based on a non-contact 

order, not based -- to the first degree and the second, not 

based on any kind of a weapon or death likely or children 

present or anything like that. 

He'd signed up for Three Trees before he even came 

in here. He was wanting to go and do that on his own and 

get some anger management counseling. The solicitor wants 

it. There's two kids in the picture that he pays child 

support to, voluntarily; he's not ordered by the court. He 

had two jobs when he was out. They were both in fast food. 

He still thinks he has the one from McDonald's. They've 

indicated they would take him back. The other one's gone 

now, but he's hoping to work at another. He's a worker. He 

does things, as you've heard. 

These are his violations on probation and some 

monetary issues. He didn't have any other issues with 

complying with them. It's these charges for a while. We 

think he's a good candidate with the intensive monitoring 

that he would get with the domestic program. It prevents 

all alcohol. They do in-home checks, they prevent weapons 

from being in the home, and they make you do counseling, so 

we think that he can do that this time. We understand that 
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it's unusual, but that is what we're asking the Court to do 

here. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. And does the 

victim wish to address the Court? 

MR. ZUSCHKE: She's here in his support. I told 

her I would give her a chance, but she indicated he wasn't 

likely going to speak. 

Is that still the case? 

She doesn't want to speak, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. Anything you want to say, 

Mr. Avera? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

14 

THE COURT: All right. The sentence on each of 

the two domestic violence cases, the domestic violence, 

first degree, which was negotiated time served. I'll file 

that negotiation. The sentence on domestic violence, second 

degree, the sentence is time served. 

How many days has he been in jail? 

MR. ZUSCHKE: Fifty-eight, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: On the probation matter, I find that 

there is a willful, substantial violation to his probation. 

We'll revoke three years and continue the balance. Thank 

you. 

MR. ZUSCHKE: Thank you. 

MS. OHAYON: Thank you, Your Honor. 
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MR. WALKER: Judge, what's -- so are we going 

to --

THE COURT: I mean continue -- we're going to 

revoke three, but continue him on --

MR. WALKER: -- on the domestic violence? 

THE COURT: Yes. On the -- I'm sorry. I thought 

there was just an ABHAM. Was there also a domestic 

violence? 

MR. WALKER: No, no. He is -- you know, we have 

ABHAM, but we wanted to put him on the DV protocol once 

he ... 

THE COURT: We can add the DV protocol as a 

condition of probation when he finishes the sentence. 

MR. WALKER: Okay. Thank you, Judge. 

(End of transcript of record) 
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 

State of South Carolina 

County of York 

16 

I, Nadine M. Capps, Official Court Reporter for the 

Sixteenth Judicial Circuit of the State of South Carolina, 

do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true, accurate and 

complete Transcript of Record of the proceedings had and 

evidence introduced in the trial of the captioned case, 

relative to appeal, in the General Sessions Court for 

York County, South Carolina, on the 7th day of May, 2020. 

I do further certify that I am neither of kin, counsel, 

nor interest to any party hereto. 

September 9, 2020 

Nadine M. Capps, CVR 
Court Reporter 
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WITNESSES 

RHPD 

. Witnessing Officer. 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2020A4620300759 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

-.. 

DOCKET NO. 2020-GS-46-02373 

The State of South Carolina 

County of York 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

JUNE 11, TERM 2020 

THE STATE 

vs. 
ANTHONY TREMAINE AVERA 

INDICTMENT FOR 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, 1ST DEGREE 

SC Code: § 16-25-0020(8) 
CDR Code: 3811 

After being fully advised as to my legal 
rights, I hereby waive presentment to 
the Grand Jury. 

Defendant 

1 __________ _ 

hereby appear in my own proper 
person and plead guilty to the within 
indictment or to 

Defendant 

Witness: 

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S. 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 
INDICTMENT 

At .a Court of General Sessions, convened on June 11, 2020., the Grand J.urors- of 

York County present upon their oath: 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, 1ST DEGREE 

The defendant, Anthony Tremaine Avera. on or about March 7, 2020 in 

York County, South Carolina, did cause physical harm or injury to Samantha 

Rosaria Spinillo, a household m~mber, or did offer or attempt to cause 

physical harm or injury to said household member with apparent present ability 

under circumstances reasonably creating_ te·ar of imminent peril. In addition 

the defendant has one prior conviction for domestic violence within ten years 

of the current offense and the defendant violated a protection order while 

committing the offense . All in violation of 16-25-0020(8), Code of Laws of 

South Carolina (1976, as amended). 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

JE 
ASSISTANT SOLICITOR 
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WITNESSES 

. ,. 

RHPD . 
: Witnessing Officer: 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2020A4620300016 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET NO. 2020-GS-46-00421 

The State of South Carolina 

County of York 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

MARCH 19, TERM 2020 

THE STATE 

vs. 
ANTHONY TREMAINE AVERA 

INDICTMENT FOR 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, 2ND DEGREE 

SC Code: § 16-25-0020(C) 
CDR Code: 3812 

After being fully advised as to my legal 
rights, I hereby waive presentment to 
the Grand Jury . 

Defendant 

I __________ _ 

hereby appear in my own proper 
person and plead guilty to the within 
indictment or to 

Defendant 

Witness: 

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S. 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 
INDICTMENT 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on March 19, 2020, the Grand Jurors 

of York County present upon their oath: 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, 2ND DEGREE 

The defendant, Anthony Termaine Avera, on or about January 1, 2020, 

in York County, South Carolina, did cause physical harm or injury to Samantha 

Rosaria Spinillo, a household member, or did offer or attempt to cause 

physical harm or injury to said household member with apparent present ability 

under circumstances- reasonably creating fear of imminent peril. In addition, 

the defendant has one prior conviction for domestic- violence within ten y.ears­

of the current offensel all in violation of Section 16-25-0020(C), Code of Laws 

of South Carolina (1976, as amended). 

Against the peace and dignity of the State·, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

---
JENNY E. DESCH 
ASSISTANT SOLICITOR 
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WITNESSES 

RHPD· 

Wrtnessihg Officer. (j)w:J-,e 

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4620300038 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

TRUEBiLL 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: Sd.o-,a 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
. Date; 

. .,. 

' 
DOCKf.fr NO. 2018-GS-46-04263 

ij . 

The State of South Carolina . 
. County of York 

cou~".r OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

SEPTEMBER 6, TERM 2018 

THE STATE 

vs. 
ANTHONY TERMAINE AVERA 

. INDICTMENT FOR 

ATTEMPTED MURDER 

SC Code: § 16-03-0029 
CDR Code: 3410 

After being fully advised as to my legal 
rights, I hereby waive presentment to 
the Grand Jury. 

Defendant 
.. 
; 

'-----------hereby appear in my own proper 
person and plead guilty to the within 
indict~~nHt or,t~ L,., ,), · 11 , .. ./ 

,.. • '" t r-\, ... 

Defencbint 

Witness: 

I ., 
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STATEOF SOUTH CAROLINA. 

. COUNTY OF YORK 
INDICTMENT 

At a C01Jrt of GeneraJ Se$$ions, CQ.nvened on S~ptember 6, 2018, the -Grand 

Jurors· ·of York County present upon their oath: 

ATTEMPTED MURDER 

The defendant, Anthony Termaine Avera, did on or about January 4. 2018, in 

York County, South Carolina, did unlewfully, with malice aforethought, either express -or 

implied, ·and with the intent to kill, attempted to kill James Ewing~ all in violation of 16;. 

03-0029, Code ofLaws of South Carolina (1976,. as amended). 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

T. MATTHEW.HOG 
ASSI_STANT SOLICITOR 
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STAT~ OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF YORK 
STATE VS. , --

ANTHONY TREMAINE AVERA 
AKA: Anthony Termainc Avera, Anthony Avera 
Race: Black Sex: M Age: ~ 
DOB:  SS#: ______ _ 
Address;  Bynum A venue 
City, State. Zip: Rock Hill, SC 29730 
DL#  SID# _,_SC.:::;,.;O..,._l.;;..84....,_4=63;.:;.9 ___ _ 

•CDL Yes □ No □ CMV Yes D No □ Hazmat Yes □ No □ 

IN THE COURT oa-· GENERAL SESSIONS 

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 
NW: 
Date of OficnSt:: 
S.C. Code§: 
CDR Code#: 

2020-GS-46-023 73 
2020A4620300759 
03i07/2020 
16-25-0020(13) 
3811 

ORIGINAL SENTENCE SHEET 

JAIL 

In disposition ofthesaid indictment comes-now the Defendant who was □ CONVICTED OF or □ PLEADS 
TO: Domestic Violence, 1st Degree {NMT JO years) 
In violation-of§ 16-25-0020(8) of the S.C. Code of Laws. bearing CDR Code# 3811 

□ NON-VIOLENT □ VIOLENT D SERIOUS □ MOST SERIOUS 0 Mnndntory GPS □ § J 7;.25-45 

D Lesser Included Offense. 
(CSC w/minor 1st or CSC w/minor 3"') 

0 Defendmn Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. C.O l)X.]> (def. 's initials) 
0 Negotiated Sentence, 0 Rccon11nend1uion by the Sl~tc. 

72806 
(lw 

102416 
SC Bnr fl Defendant Atlomcy o Defendant SC Bar# 

□ State Department of Corrections ~nty Detention Center, 
for a d_eterminate tent1 l, days/months/years or □ under the Youthrul Offender Act not to exceed ___ years 
and/or to pay a fine of$ et. ; provided that upon the service of ___________ days/months/years and or payment 
of$. _____ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for _______ _ 
months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Service standard conditions of pl'obation, which 
are incorporated by reference. 
□ CONCURRENT or □ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:. _______________________ _ 

□ The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC. 
□ The Defendant is to be placed on Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 922, it is uillawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or receh·e a firearm· or ammunition. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITUTION: D Deferred D Def. Wah·es Hearing 
Total: $ ____ plus 20%fce: ____ $ _____ _ 

Payment Terms: __________________ _ 

D S~t by SCDPPPS _______________ _ 

Recipient: ____________________ _ 

*Fine:· ____________ _ 

$100 

$JOO 

§ 14-1-206 (AssessmcnLc; I07.5%) 

§14-1-211 (A)(l)(Conv. Surcharge) 

§ 14-1-211 (A}(2)(DUI Surcharge) 

§56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 

§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 

Proviso (Public DerlProbation) 

$12 

§ 14-.1-212 {Law Enforce. Funding) 

§ I 4-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 

§50-21-114 (BUI Breath T~st fee) 

§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) 

3% to County (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

$25 
$500 
$25 

$150 

$50 

$40/ea 
$ 

Clerk ofCourt/DC\y Clerk: DAVID HAMILTON 

Court Reporter: ocLt:b--cR C:~ 
SCCA/217 (04/2018) 

$ 

$ 

s )Do 
s 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ dS 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ l~s 

□ Ordered PTUP ____________ _ 

______ days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED 0 

Att~nd Voe. Rehab. Or Job Corp. _________ _ 

May serve W/E beginning ____________ _ 

Suhstuncc Abuse Counseling D 

Random Drug/Alcohol Testing D 

Fine may be pd. in e4ual consccuth·e weekly/monthly 
pmts. or$ _____ Beginning _________ _ 

$. ____ Paid to Public Defender Fund 

Other:. __________________ _ 

□ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, 

Proviso· 

during p 

any othc 

Presiding Judge: 

.. • ~ 'II • 

Judge Code: _.,1,;.._.g..._,~--~......_ __________ _ 
Sentence Oat~: __,,,}S~•-t..z.--·...,1Jtl,O=-a· :;.~----------
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IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS STATE-OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COlJl'\TY QF· YOitl< 
.STATE VS. . 

ANTHONY TREMAINE AVERA 
INDICTMENT/CASE/I: 
NW: 

2020-GS-46-0042I 
2020A46203000'16 
01/01/2020 
I6-25-0020(C} 
3812 

JAIL 
AKA: Anthony Tcrmnine Avera Anthony Avera 

. Race: Black Sex: M Ag~: 1!L__ 
DOB::  SS#: ____ _ 

Dote of Offense: 
S.C. Codel: 
CDR Code#: 

Address: Bynum A vsnuc 
City, State, Zip: ·Rocle Hill, SC 29730 'fl 
DL#  SID# =SC=,0 ..... 1"""84__,,4=63....,9 ____ '=J 
•~DL Yes O No DCMVYes □ No O Hazmat Yes □ No □ 

RIGIN.AL 
SENTENCE SHEET 

0 C.ONVICtf:D OF o.r □ PLEADS In disposition of the said. in~ictme~1t CQ!fl~~ '1QW tlle.Dcfcr1dant who was 
TO: Domestic Violence, 2nd Degree (NMT 3 years &/or·S2500-5000} 
In violation ·or§. 16-25-0020lC}o'rthe-S~C. Cod~ of Laws. bearing CDR Code# 3812 

D NON-VIOLBNT □ VIOLENT □ SERIOUS 0 MOST SERIOUS O Mandtuory GPS D § 17-25-45 

The charge is: 0 As indicted. D Lesser lnduded Offense, 
(CSC w/minor I St or CSC w/minorJrd) 

CD--15efcndnnt Waives P~cntrncnt to GmJ1d Jury. (}o 11:Z:.l)cdcf. ~s initiuls) 
The plea is: 0 Without Negotiations or Recommendation. 

ATT~,
17 

... JJ~ ~ 8J ,s1 
~~....-----: :::mo6 V•i,~l:t, +0 1Al1 C.o \JT]) 

JcnbyE. Desch. AssistanfSolicitor SC Bar # Dctcndant ~ Attorney for efendnnt 

D Negotiated Scnlcnce, D Recommendation by the Stole. 

PROSE 
SC Bar# 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant i)°Qmmitled IQ the O Stale Dcpart_mcnt of Correctlo11s &'CtlU~ty Detention Center, 
fora determinate term orr;:~, . d~ys/months/years or . D under the Y.outhful Offender Act not to exceed ___ years 
and/or to pay a fine of$ f:d"' ; provided that upon the service of __________ days/months/years and or payment 
of$ _____ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for _______ _ 
months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole aild Pardon Service standard conditions of probation, which 
are incorporated by reference. 
0 CONCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ______________________ _ 

D The Defendant is to be given credit.for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SC DOC. 
□ The Defendant is to be placed on Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135. 

Pursuant to 18 U.S~C. Section 922, it is unlawful for a person c()nvfotcd of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or receive. a firearm or ·ammunition. 

SPECJAL CONDITIONS: 
□ RESTITUTION: D Deferred D Def. Waives Hearing 
Total:$ ____ plus20%fce: ____ S ____ _ 

Payment Terms: __________________ _ 

D Set by SCDPPPS _______________ _ 

Recipient: ____________________ _ 

•Fine: ____________ _ 

§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) 

§14-1-211 (A)(l)(Coilv. Sl1rcharge) 

§14-1-211 (A)(2)(Dl)I Surcharge) 

-§56-5-2995 (DUI As~ssmcnt) 
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 

· Proviso (Public Def/Probuti011) 
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 

§14-1-213 (0mg Court Surcharge) 

§5.0-21-114 tBUI Breath Test F.e~) 

§56-5-2942{J) {Vehicle Assessment) 
3%to County (if paid in ·instaJlments) 

TOTAL 

$100 

$1.00 

$12 
$25 

$500 
$25 
$150 

$50 

$40/CR 
$· 

$ 

$ 

$ lDD 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ .Q5 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ le1S: 

Clerk of Court/D~ty Clerk: _D __ .\\_'1_o_H~A~l\_11_1.T_O_N_' _______ _ 

Court Reporter: L'O c\--i ~ ~ C.°i'f C> . 

SCCN2 I 7 (04/2018) 

D Ordered PTUP ____________ _ 

_ ____ dnys/hours Public Service Employment 

ObtainGED D 

AUcnd Voe. Rehab. Or Job Corp. _________ _ 

May serve W/E beginning ____________ _ 

Substance Abuse Counseling □ 

Random Drug/Alcohol T csting D 

Fine mny he pd. in equal consccu1ivc weekly/monthly 
pmts. of$ _____ Beginning _________ _ 

$ ______ Paid to Public Defender fund 

Other: __________________ _ 

D Appointed PD or appointed other. counsel. 

Proviso r I c SOO he paid to Clerk 
during p be • 

any othc 
Presidilig Judge: 
Judge Code: 5: 
Sentence Oale: ........ :~==-==·-=1,()==@:===================== 
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tJ-TAT~ o ·F·S()~'f.R·l;AROLlNA 

· COUNTY OF YORK 
~TAT£' vs; -- JNDICTMEN,T/CASF.Jh 
'f)-" . . ANTHON'/ TERMAINE AVERA NW: 

AKA: AnthonytAvem DateofOffeQSe: 
!) Ra~: , . . S.ex; M. Age: ll._. S.C. Code §; 
\Q. ()OB.:.  .. . . . . . SS#:•  toil Cod~.hz 

A~dtessi ··Patroiot.Parkway.   · · t.;\ "-\. 

2018-GS-46:04263 
2018A4620300038 
01/04/2018 
16-00.0029 
3410 JAIL 

Cit)•.State.Zip: 1foclc:Hilt_sc22tJO· . .!:' D ·· 1G\r11 ~ 
DUI,  SI[)# =Seo=· ....,1.._844....._.63._,9 _____ v__... 

SENTENCE SHEET 

•CDL Yes: D No: O-CMV Yes □ No □ Hnznla~· Ye9 . □ No D 
Jn:.9_ij$1)~sition of the said indictment to.mes now t.b~ ~fe~~{lll.t \\TI() wns. □ CQNVICTED OF or 
TO: Ass,ulf&~Bpttery:otA Hlgla An"tl.Afigrl\>it~d Nii'ture (~MT 2o'·yea'[Sl 
li1 ~iolation.;Qf fl 6::03.:.0600lB)tl) of 1he S.C~ Code;of Laws, bearing CDR Ccxfe II 3411 

181 PLEADS 

D NON-VIOLENT ~ VlOLENT igJ SERIOUS 0 MOST.SERIOUS □ Mru1datory OPS □ §-17•25-45 
(CSC.w/mioor I II or CSC ,v/minor 3~) 

TI,c d131gC is: 
·thc.pl~.is.: 

0 ,Asfndicl~~ ®. Lesser ll'lcludedOffcn~ 0 DcfcndanrWaivos P~sentm~nl to 0r&!ld Jury. ___ (det:'s initials) 

0 W.i1hd,lfNegoti~tions or ~ecommffldation, • 181 Negodated Sentence~ 0 . Recomincnda1ion by 1ht State •. 
ATTEST: 

ant Solicitor SC Bar# 

~-
i5efendan~ 

i ri½ _______ . _______ 6=6 __ 59~3 

SCBar# 

WHE·R-EF?~--~ the··. o ___ efendant is com.mitte_d to the ~- · . t~te Departin~.nt or. C~rre·c· .tlons ·. D Cou1,dy De. tention Center., 
for -a det~munate term of / t) dayshnonths/~or D under the Youthful orr,nd~r Act not to exceed ___ years. 
and/or to pay-a fine of$ · ; provided that upon the s~rvice of -J1t> . ~nonths/years· and or pay1nent 
ors_......, ____ ; plus costs and assessments as appHcable*; the bal.ance is suspended with probation for C 
montbs/~d subject t() South Carolina Department of Probation •. Parole and Pardon Service standard conditions of probation, which 
are incorporated by reference. 
□ CONCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: _______________________ _ 
~be Def~ndant is to be given cred.it-for time served puFSua11t to S.C. Code §24- l 3-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC. 
□- ·The Defendant is to be placed on Central Registry·of Child Abuse and Neglect pw;srsuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135. 

. . . . C. ~ .. 4,,-.3 c:r e:, '~ "1 ~ • 
Pursuant to 18 U$.C. Section 922~ at as unla\vful .for a person convicted ofa vlolataol\ or Se~t&on l 6•25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, -0r receive. 11 firearm or ammunition. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTlTlfrlON: □: Derta-red □ Dtr. Waives Hearing 

·roto1: $,_· ____ plus20%fcc: ____ $ ____ _ 

PaY,mertt Terms: ____________________ _ 

p Set .by SCOPPPS _______________ _ 

.Recipient~--------------------------
•Fine: __ ........_ ___________ _ 

$l00 
$100 

$.12 

§ 14-1 •206 (Assessments- I 07.5%) 

§14-1-211 (A)(IJ(Conv. Surcharge) 

§14-1-211 (A)(2)(OUI Surcharge) 

~56-5,-299S (D.UI Assessmenl} 
§S6•l•l86(DUI B~~th Test} 
Provi$Q {Public Dcf7Probrition) 

§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. funding) 
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 

§50-2'1-114 (8Ul ~ih Tesl Fee) . 

$25 

§56-S-2942V) l Vellicie Assessment) 
3% lo County (ifpaid in installments) 

TOTAL 

$500 
$25 

SISO 
$50 
$40/ea 

s 

$ 

s 
slQO 
$ 

$ 

s 
s 
sQ5 
$ 

$ 
s ____ _ 

S.-Y-,::::"-~--
$ \&_=.;, 

c_1e~·ofC.ou __ ~eJJIW,flerk; . D4vi4H@jj)ton_ 
Court R~porter: · US""'-,Alll,,. ~., · .. P .. Rc..:a:'il1,,.:··1.1-~·R->i...c,o11,R,A&"'°'i ..... '.Jl ... ~"""-1--.1. ---.-.-.. _____ _ 

SCCA/217.(0412018) 

PTUP __________ _ 

_____ days/hours Public Service ·Employment 

0btainGED 0 

Attend Voe. Rehab. Or Job Corp. _________ _ 
May serve \VIE begiMing ___________ _ 

$ubstanc~ A,blise·Cou11Seling □ 

Random Drug/Alcohol Testing □ 
Fine may be pd. in equal consecutive w~.:kly/montbly 
pmts; ·of$ _____ B~inning ________ _ 

$ ____ Paid .to Public Defender fund 

01her:. _________________ _ 

0 Appointed PO.or appointed other counsel. 
.Proviso ~quir~ $5.00 t>e id lo Clerk 

during pro · t:cted before 

any other fee ,, . · 
Presiding Judge: 
fadgeCode: 
se,uenc.e .Oat~ 
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Therefore, IT, IS ORDER_ED. that: 
d · the suspended :sentence 6e:revoked and 'the above named defendant be required to serve ____ fl]:)nthslyears, ttie remainder 

of the onglnal ~~~t~rice, anW.ot pay$-_____ • 

file suspended sentence be_ revoked and_ the above named defendant be required to-serve 3 _ mnnth~f the. original 
sentence and/or. pay.$ -- : thereupon to be reinstated on probation, subject to the conditions set forth fn the 
attached order _and nol 'inconsistent with this :order. 

D th$ above named defendam, l~ 09n~ni.l~d-qn probation as provided for In the originEtl-sentence, subject to the <:onditfons set 
forth therein and not lnconsfstent wltlfthls order~ · 

D probation is reduced to time,served.under supervision and the defendant is discharged from-sopervJsfon on this de.le. 

D the above named defendant" is placed on· electronic monitoring-pursuant to §23~540 {mandatory If· convicted of firstor ·trurd degree 
criminal sexual conduct With a mfoC)r ot lewd act, cfiscreUonary if ~nvicted ohmy-other applicable sex-offense against a minor). 

□ Rnancial Obligations: Order .satisfies;. □Department fees. (~rrea,age). _ CivUJudgment: □D~parm"ter:tt f~es 
D~lnel)J and other fees {~rearag, 1-balance> □Fines and oiherfees 
□Restltutlon ·(and 20%) (arraa~ I balance) □Restitution (and 20%) 

A r19t.,,- /hc""'-".>~~~c,.. ,f-._ 
,V.u (GYJ tc( +- ~• t\..... V f ~ ·/.-"-'t 

D Toe def~nd~hl Is given credit for·pre.-rev0<:ation healing detention time on current probation violation to be ~lculated ~nd 
applied by·the. sc;·.oepartmeiit of Corrections. 

□ The· defer,d~rit 1$ to be glv~n_ credit for pretrial detention timfJ served· (NIA if defendant has served prfor SC.DC time). 

□- Th~ deferi4al'.lt has serv~ ____ dayslmonlhsly@rs of_ prior revQCatfons and/or initial .SCDC Um 
□ Thedefendant was previou~ty placed,on a:ctfve electrQnic monitoring p 

_______ / __ (§': ___ ~ _____ JudfcJal Circuit 

Y<iuai'ahefQbyad~lli.at:l!Qder~€!i8Vltl\e~,ttrmy.~tanytfmE,•re~ormodif'y~c:cnrl!tlon_oflht,J,_r0balior):·impose·~ylawful~nslld~_proper;0te,ctendyourperlod 
or probation nof Id~ five (6) ye3t5.. At any Otiie·wlthln trui· period or~ pmbatlon, tho Coutt may require )'Oll to serve any part of lha or1g1na1 sentem:e fmposed. 

This Is to,-certlfy that I have read; er havo l)ac:f read to me,· the order end the condition~ 1(•:t ctMheteint I a~ lo comply with such condlllons and the conditions of my attached 
probilll<n·C<derduriilg Iha period of my probilUon, I have rocohed a caoy olll1ls Ccurt'II °""'' m,d ~ ~ • XndeB:AJ W.tn~ == _ 
Signed this _ ~ day of M,\/' p;>°k) at _ · . - SC 

~ ~~ ~ ~ 

OPPPS Form 9'(S!~) Revision: F Revision 0a1e 11~28~2016 Copy OIStrJbutlons: While-C1er11:· of Court: Yellbvi-SCDC: Pink-Offender FBe: Gold-Offender 
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT 
 

 Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed 
to be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal 
complies to the best of my ability with the April 15, 2014 order from the South Carolina 
Supreme Court entitled “Revised Order Concerning Personal Identifying Information and Other 
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This 8th day of January, 2021. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
s/ Joanna K. Delany 
Joanna K. Delany 
Appellate Defender 
 
South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense 
Division of Appellate Defense 
PO Box 11589 
Columbia, S.C. 29211-1589 
 
ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT 

 

Jan 08 2021




